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' Kenton County, which was first s part of Fayette, then of Woodford,
Scott and Campbell Counties in turn, was crested April 50, 1840, It is
cne of the smallest counties of the State from a territorisl standpoint,
but the second largest in populstion.

Although earlier explorers had penetrated intc Fentucky, the first
white person who, according to the records, asctuslly set foot on the
soil of Kenton County was Christopher Gist, a surveyor for the Chio Land
Company of Virginie. He and an assistant ercossed the Lickimg River at
its month, going westwardly with their pack horses, on March 16,17&1.
Two yeurs later Mrs. Mary Ingles, after whom the Ingles Highway is
uemed, escoped from Indisns with asnother women, snd erossed the Licking
at the ssme point es Gist,

The J%?tion of the kicking and Ohio socon beceme a well-known
crossing point of the early settlers. It was nlso a rendesvous for
militarg expeditions for and a;einst Indien and English foes during
campaigﬁs of the Revolutionary War and the Sar of 1812, Simon Xenton,
after whom the county was named, first visited this region in 17%¥1, and
often returned in later years. Other femous pioneers who cemped here
were General George Rogers Clark, Deniel Boone, Genersl Charles Becott,
OoloneliJuhn Floyd and Colonel Benjamin lLogan,

It is not certsinly known when the first home waes built in what is
nov ¥enton coﬁnty. but there were settlers four miles south.6f Covington
as early as 1786, It is recorded that & Mr. Williams erected ¢ log cabin
which was still standing in 1791 on the Ohio River, twenty rods west

of the Licking. Another log eabin was built sbout the same yesr on the



Ohlo River nesr the mouth of #Willow Ruu; & third stood on the banks

of the Licking River a short distence south of Thirteenth Street.

' In 1769 » Sootoﬁm&n named Thomas Kennedy, who had first settled

in Losantville (now Clncinnati), moved to the Kentucky side and
established a ferry. Up to that time the loenlity had been known ss

the "douth of the Licking", "The Point", or sometimes even as "Newpo -,
When the ferry begen to operante, it was eslled "Fennedy's Ferry" or
Kennedy's Farm",

A few years previons to this (lfebruary 14, 1780) one George Muse,
a Virginia scldier of the French end Indisn wars, hed been granted a
warrant for two hundred seres of land st the mouath of the Licking. It
is seid that he troded this warrant to & comrade, for a keg of
whiskey, who in turn sold it for a gquarter of buffslo to COenerel James
Taylor, afterwards a restdent of Cempbell County. The general trans-
ferred it to Colcnel Stephen Trisg, killed at the battle of the
Blne Licks, who assigned it to John Todd, Jr., and he reassigned it
to une James Welch. ¥Finaslly on May 2, 1788, a survey of the lend
was mﬁﬁe out and entered on the records.

The two hundred acres, which hed been thus bandied about, included
what beceme the original town of Covington. Thomss Xennedy acouired
the tract from Welch for 160 pounds in 1801, and erected un it, for
his large fsmily, & handsome stone house which fsced the Ohic River
between Riverside Drive and Second Street some 700 feet east of
Garrerd Street., When destroyed in 1909, it was the oldest house
in the eity. He lived on this farm until 1614, st vhich time three
Cineinnati capitalists, Oeneral John 8. Gnrno, Richard M, CGano and
Thomas Davis Carneal, bought 180 acres from Kennedy ih order to lay

out the infant village.
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As platted and charted by them on Februsry £, 1816, the town
incliuded the present city blocks south to Sixth Street snd west to
#ashington Street. By the act of incorperation, the title wes vested
in Jriel Sebree, Alfred Snndford.. Joseph Kennedy (son of Thomas),
Williem [ubble and John C, Buckner, with full power to diepose of the
lots by public nuction. The plat was not recorded until Augnst 31,
18156, in what was then Campbell County, at Alexandria, but the first
snle of lots took place March 20, 1816, vringing from $8.00 to
£12 .00 per foot,

The town was named after CGeneral Leonard Covington, of Meryland,
a gallant and distinguished cevalry officer, who had served under
™iad Anthony" Wayne. General Covington was mortally wounded in the
vattle of “"Chrysler's Field", and died November 14, 1818, rifteen
months vefore the town was incorporated.

Five governors of Kentucky were honored when the streets were
named, s8¢0 we find that the thoroughfares ranning north and scuth,
baginni}ng neer t‘m Licking River, are called Shelby, Garrard,
Creenup, Scott and Madison, respectively. One was nemed after old
Thomes Kennedy, another after CGeneral Thomas Sandford, representative
in Congress from this district; the last one to the -g;sst wes named
after President Washington. The streets, extending from esst to
west, were numbered from the Ohio River southwardly.

Daring the next fiftecn vears the town prospered and slowly
expanded., In 1804-056 there had béan 76 people residing in & space
whiich included five times the area of Covington along the immediste
Licking bottom. In 18826 the population of the town itself numbered
404, oar yesrs leter the wmensus showed 715. 0ld-fashioned inns,
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or taverns, served the travéler; the citizens worshipped in a log
ehurch; children were teusht in a log esbin school in the center of the
puglic sauare wiere t'e old Court lHouse and afterwerds the City Hell
were later erected. This school cesbin wes used for many years for
various kinds of meetings, suh as those of‘the Town Trustees, the
Light Infantry and the Social Polemic Suvciety.

In addition to such improvements, the little pleace soon senuired a
bank and a fire brigade. Thenfoll owed & eotton faetory ami e rolling
mill., The ferry, which had formerly employed skiffs, flat boats and
barges in the order nemed, now advenced first to horse power and in
1820 to stesms The ferry rates were reduced to 182} cents for pedes-
trians, while for wogons, horses, and live stock, there was a ocharge
varying from 206 cents to a doller,

In the following decade, partly owing to Cincinnati's progress, the
town took on new life, so thet on Februsry 24, 1834, the Lesislature
passed an set inecorporating it into s city. The last meeting of the
Board of Trustees of the old town was held April 10 of that yesr, offi-
cars of éhe new manieipality having besen chosen five days previously.
Hortimer W, Bentun, & capsble lawyer, wa:s elseted Mayor, and some of
the leading cltizens were pressed into servéce for councilmen: Williem
Hopkins, John T. Levis, John B. Casey, William ¥, Southgate, James
G. Arneld, John A. Goodson and® John Mackoy.

By 1840 the ppulation of the city had inereased to 2,086, while
the surrounding countryside had developed even more rapidly, the
number of ecitisens in whet is now Kenton Connty being £,790. This grest
growth mede 1t necessary to crerte 8 gounty govermment, and its sest was

established st Independence, then "the most eligible point.”
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The improvement of the previoﬁs ten years was destined to be
surpassed in the succeeding yenrs in both eity =né county. Merchauts
were attracted to this thriving region; doctors snd lawyers of ability
found it to be & good rield, more churches were built; excellent
privotie ﬁehoulﬁ‘aud even & cullege -~ the Western Baptist Theclogical
Institute -- were established in the town; two newspapers were
published there. By‘%£46 a censug of Covimgton showed over six
thousend paople. | a

At that time n movement wes storted for the erection of & roadway
instead of a ferry, across the Ohio River; and ultim: tely o suspension
bridge wes built. The foundetions for its towers were begun in 1866,
and completed Jenuary 1, 1867. During this time the atmosphere was
one of hope and prosperity; substantisl homes were buidt; the macadan&
izing of the Covington and Lexinston Turnpike was finiéhed; other roasds
were projected; gardens and pleasure resorts were started; and the
populer Lettonian Springs (from whieh Latonia sets its name ) were
founded. irumilies from the deep South drove with their cosches and
gervsnis to spend the summers there.

The decade, beginning with 1860, was ;ne of treme ndous raiiway
development and the City of Covingtou was ambitious. A reilrosd to
Lexington, afterwsrds known »s the Lentacky Centrsl end absorbed by
the Louisville and Neshville, was built by 1861 ss fer as Cynthiana
and later extended the balance of the way. But in 1867 there was a
panie, the inevitable result of over-expansion, and hard times set in.
These conditions were accentuasted by the bitterness engendered by the
nbproashing Civil War; end the animosity betweon sleve holders and

sbolitionists was intensified in ell the border stetes, The result was
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one of dissppointed exveetat&ona end unreslized plans. With the
exception of those individuasls and families who prof ited by war contracts,
tha' people of Covington and ¥Xenton County suffersd geverely during the
strife. W“hile there was not much sctusl fighting, the attacks and
threstened raids of the Counfederste furces, together with the indireet
effects of eonflict and martial law, made the years 1860 to 1866
nnhappy for all citizens.

The dark deys of Reconstruetiocn which followed would have been

unbesrable, except for a vusiness boom, which eame when the Suspension

}?'ened for traffic in 1867. During thé ensuing yesrs there
seemed to %; promise of s glorious future for Covington. Many new
people came to reside in the oity; more ?notories woere built; there

was an imereased demand for resl estote. Frices sonred as high as three

hundred dollars a front foot for strictly residentisl lots; snd houses

s0ld for twice as much &s they afterwsrds brought ~even in the spec-

ulative days of 1929, The toxable velue of propefzy in ¥enton County

in 1873 wae 700 percent grester than it had been in 1840, Town

lots alone ineressed in the seme period twenty-four times in money value.
Had 1t not veen for the grent panic of 1873 which encompassed the

whole country, this tide of prosperity mizht heve continued longer, but

other events were tr:nspiring to chenge the trend of populstion. Improved

mesns of transportation, such =8 horse cars »nd inter elsctric ones, tcok

the people to the hill-tops and by 1880 the expected boom had subsided.
Since that dste, the growth of Covington hes been regulsr, but not

spectacular, It hos advanded hond in hand with its neighhors to bescome

a solid snd substantisl city, as the fscts mnéd figures given in the

following peges will show. Another bridge to Cincinneti has been
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erected, a new railrosd serves the city, and meny splendid highways
l?ad to all sections of the country. Prom sn industrisl end residene
tial standpoint, there has been stendy prqxreéa. The sdvanteges of
its location, the richness and besuty of its surrounding country, and
above all, the character of its men and wuman‘with the sturdy tredi-
ticng of these who preceded themﬁ.maka it certeian that Covington

and Xenton County will continue éo maintain their position as a

sound, prospering American community.
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